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WILLIAMS
&
GDMPANY: P-C Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Education of
Le Mars Community School District
Le Mars, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activity, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Le Mars Community
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively camprise the District’'s basic
financial statements as listed in the table cf contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Le Mars Community Scheol District’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on cur audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the
Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards reguire that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit atso includes assessing the accounting principles
used ard the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
staternent presentation. We believe that ocur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Le Mars Community School District as of June 30, 2004
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where appiicable, thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated August 20,
2004 on our consideration of the Le Mars Community Schocl District’s Internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agresments and cther matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide
an opinicn on the internal centrol cver financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 15
and page 38 are not recuired parts of the basic financiai statements, but are supplementary information
reguired by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no cpinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinicns on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Le Mars Community School District's basic financiai statements. The supplemental information,
included in Schedules 1 through 7, including the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards as required by U.S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, is presented for purposes

21 First Avenue NW PO Box 1210 Le Mars, lowa 51031-1010
712-546-7801 FAX 712-546-6543



of additional znalysis and is not a required part of the basic financia! statements. Such information has
teen subjected to the auditing procecures applied in our audit of the basic financial staterments and, in
our cpinion, is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whole,
WM(}_ ; "'%C .

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Le Mars, lowa
August 20, 2004



Management Discussion and Analysis

Le Mars Community School District provides this Management Discussion and Analysis
of its fimancial statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. We encourage readers to consider
this information in conjunction with the District’s [inancial statements, which follow
this section. "

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this
section), the basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present ditferent views of
the district:

* The first two statements are district-wide financial statements thal provide both
short-term and long-term information about the District’s overall financial
status.

¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual
parts of the District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the
District-wide statements.

o The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and
special education were financed in the short term as well as what remains for
future spending.

» Proprietary funds statements offer short- and long-term financial information
about the activities the District operates like businesses, such as food services.

e Fiduciary fundys statements provide information about the financial relationships
in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.



The financial
statements  also
include notes Figure A-1

that explain
some of the LeMars Community School District

information  in Annual Financial Report

the  statements
and provide
more detailed
data. The
statements are
followed by a
section of
required
supplementary
information that
further explains
and supports the
financial
statements with
a comparison of
the District’s
budget for the
year. Figure A-
1 shows how the
various parts of
this annual
report are
arranged and related to one another.

Managemen asic Financial Required

Discussion Statements Supplementary

Analysis Information

Figure A-2 below summarizes the major features of the District’s financial staternents,
inctuding the portion of the District’s activities they cover and the types of information
they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and
analysis highlights the stricture and contents of each of the statements.



Figure A-2:

Major Features of the District Wide and Fund Financial Statements

District-wide
Statements

Fund Financtal Statements

Governmental
Funds

Proprietary Funds

| Fiduciary Funds

Scope

Entire district
{except fiduciary
funds)

The activities of the
district that are not
proprietary or
fiduciary, such as
special education
and building
Inaintenance

Activities the
district operates
similar to private
businesses: food
services is included
here

Instances in which
the district
administers
resources on behalf
of someone else,
such as scholarship
programs and
student activities
monies

Required financial
statements

s Statement
of net assets

s Statement
of activities

+ BRalance
sheet

s Statement
of revenues,
expenditures,
and changes
in fund
balances

s Statement
of net assets

s Statement
of cash flows

s Statement of
fiduciary net
assets

+  Statement of
changes in
fiduciary net
assets

Accounting Basis
and measurement
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
focus

Accrual accounting
and cconomic
resources tocus

Accrual accounling
and economic
resources focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, short-term
and long-tarm

Generally assets
expected to be used
up and liabilities
that come due
during the year or
soon thereafter; no
capital assets or
long-term liabilities
included

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, and short-
term and long-term

All assets and
liabilities, both
short-term and long-
term; funds do not
currently contain
capital assets,
although they can

Type of
inflow/outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received
during or soon after
the end of the year;
expenditures when
goods or services
have been received
and the related
liability is due and
payable

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

All additions and
deductions during
the year, regardless
of when cash is
received or paid




District-wide Financial Statements

The District-wide statements report information zbout the district as a whole using
accounting methods simtilar to those used by private sector companies. The statement
of net assets includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

The two District-wide statements report the District’s net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets — the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities — is
one way to measure the District’s financial health or position.

¢ Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indicator of
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

» To assess the District’s overall health, you need to consider additional non-
financial factors such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the
condition of schoot buildings and other facilities.

In the District-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into two
categories:

o Govermmental activities: Most of the District’s basic services are included here,
such as regular and special education, transportation and administration.
Property taxes and state aid finance most of these activities.

* Business-type activities: The District charges fees to help it cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The District’s food service program would be
included here.



Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s
funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds — not the district as a whole.
Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. -

Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.

The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes, (such as repaying its long-term debts) or to show that it is properly
using certain revenues (such as federal grants).

Types of funds:

Governmental funds: Most of the District’s basic services are included in
governmental funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending.  Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the
reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because this
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the District-
wide statements, additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds
statements explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprictary funds are reported in the same way
as the District-wide statements. The District’s enterprise funds (one type of
proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows. fnternal service funds,
(the other kind of proprietary fund) are optional and available to report
activities that provide supplies and services for other District programs and
activities. At this time the District chooses not to use any internal service funds.

Fiduciary funds: The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong
to others, such as a scholarship fund. The District accounts for outside
donations to specific District schools for specific purposes in this fund. The
District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are
used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong.
The District excludes these activities from the District-wide financial statements
because it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.



Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Net assets — Figure A-3 below provides a summary of the District’s net assets for the
year ended June 30, 2004,

Figure A-3

Condensed Statement of Net Assets June 30, 2004

Governmental Activities Business-type Total District Total %
Activities Change
2003 | 2004 2003 2004 2003 | 2004
Current  and  other | 311,129,630 | $10,622,350 | $76,200 | $49,393 | $11,205,830 | $10,671,743 | (4.77%)
assets
Capital Assets 7.474,924 7,363,389 5.925 4,351 7.480.849 7,367,740 (15)%
Total assefs 18,604,554 17,985,739 82,125 53,744 18,686,679 18,039,483 (3.46%)
Long-term debt [ 2,230,000 1,475,000 - - 2,230,000 1,473,000 (33.86%)
outstanding
Other Liabilities 7,458,065 7,338,872 7.065 20,570 7,465,130 7,359,442 (1.42%)
Total Liabilities 9,688,065 8,813,872 7.063 20,570 9,695,130 8,834,442 (8.88%)
Net Assets
Invested in capital | 5,244,924 5,883,030 5,925 4,351 5,250,849 5,887,381 12.12%
assets, net of related '
debt
Restricted 736,436 284,960 —- -~ 736,456 284,960 .| (61.31%)
Unrestricted 2,935,109 3,003,877 69.135 28,823 3,004,244 3,032,700 95%
Total net assets 58,916,489 39,171,867 $75,060 | $33,174 | $8,991,459 | $9,205,041 2.38%

The District’s combined net assets increased by 2.38% from $8,991,489 to $9,205,041.

The overall financial performance of the District remains strong even though the past three
years have each shown small declines in the unreserved/undesignated fund balance. These
small declines can primarily be attributed to the poor performance of the State of Iowa
economy and its relationship to State Aid. In October of 2003, the district was informed of a
4.3% across the board cut in all state aid. In addition to this factor, the district has made a
[ully conscious decision to continue its commitment to a number of programming changes
phased in over the past several years for the purpose of improved learning for all students.

O



Changes in net assefs — Figure A-4 shows the changes in net assets for the year ended

June 30, 2004.

Figure A-4
Changes in Net Assets from Operations :
Governmental Activities | Business-type Total District Total %
Activities Change
2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004
Revenue
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $1.094,112 | 51,008,377 | $265,766 | 3266,605 | $1,359,878 | $1,274.982 | (6.25%)
Operating Grants
Coniributions 1,719,848 1,696,100 [ 220,987 233,606 | 1,940,835 1,929,706 (.06%)
Capital Grants & Cont,
General Revenues
Property Tax 5,627,826 5,955,087 - - 5,617,826 5,955,087 6.00%
State Aid 7,112,992 7,244,306 -- -— 7,112,992 7.244.306 1.85%
Other 329,832 57,310 129 4,507 329961 61,817 | (81.27%)
Transfers (81,322) (80,818) | 81,322 80,818 -- o
TOTAL REVENUES $15,793,288 | $15,880,362 | $368,204 | $585.536 [ $16,361,492 | $16,465,898 64%
Expenses
Instruction 10,350,059 10,364,277 - 10,350,059 10,364,277 14%
Support Services 4,261,742 4,251,187 | 594,920 627422 | 4,856,602 4,878,619 453%
Debt Services 117,705 93.345 - o 117,705 93,345 | (20.69%)
Intergovernmental 628,078 657,856 -- - a88,078 657,856 | (4.39%)
TOTAL EXPENSES $15,417.584 | $15,366,675 | $594,920 | $627,422 | $16,012,504 | $15,994,007 | (11%)
INCREASE(DECREASE) $375,704 $513.687 | 5(26,716) | $(41,886) $348.988 $471,801 | 36.05%

Changes in Net Assets from Operating Results for the vear ended June 30, 2004 -
Figure A-4.

Figure A-4 compares changes in net assets from operating results for 2003 and 2004.
In 2004 state aid accounted for 44% of total revenues as compared to 43% for 2003.
Property taxes in 2004 accounted for 36% of total revenues compared to 34% in 2003.
State aid and property taxes combined provided 80% of the funding for District
activities in 2004 and 77% in 2003.

District revenues for 2004 totaled $16,465,898 compared to $16,361,492 in 2003. 96%
of total revenue was from governmental activities for 2004 and 97% for 2003.

District expenses for 2004 totaled $15,994,097 as compared to $16,012,504 for 2003.
The District’s predominant expenses are directly for instruction with 65% in 2004 and
65% in 2003.

10




Figure A-5
) Sources of Revenues for Fiscal
I - Year 2004

Figure A-6
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2004

11




Governmental Activities

Figure A-7 presents the cost of four major district activities: instruction, support
services, debt services, and intergovernmental. The table also shows each activity’s net
cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided
for specific programs). The net cost shows the financial impact placed on the taxpayers
by each function.

Figure A-7
Net Cost of Total Cost of Services % Net Cost of Services %
Governmental Change Change
Activities

2003 2004 2003 2004
Instruction $10,350,059 | $10,364,277 3% | $8,401,232 | $8,476,005 89%
Support Services 4,261,742 | 4,251,197 (.25%) | 4,084,687 4,092,848 20%
Debt Service 117,705 93,345 | (20.69%) 117,705 93,345 | (20.69%)
Intergovernmenta 688,078 657,856 | (4.39%) -—- S -—-
1
TOTAL $15,417,584 | $15,3066,675 (.33%) | $12,603,624 | $12,662,198 A46%

* The cost of all governmental activities this year was $15,366,675 as compared
to $15,417,584 for 2003. This represents an decrease of .3%.

* Most of the District’s 2004 net costs of $12,662,198 were financed by District
and state taxpayers, i.e. $7,244,306 of state aid and $5,955,087 of property tax.

e Federal and state grants subsidized programs with grants totaling $1,929,706
for 2004 compared to $1,940,835 for 2003.

12




Business-Type Activities

Revenues of the District’s business-type activities (school food and nutrition services)
totaled $585,536 and expenses totaled $627,422. (Refer to Figure A-4.) Factors
contributing to these results are as follows: Business-type activity expenditures
exceeded revenue by $41,866. This deficit was caused primarily by the school food and
nutrition services program assuming the employee benefit and fixed charges costs
rather than the costs being paid from general operating funds as has been done in the
past and by a decision to hold off on a price increase. Prices have been increased by
$.10 per meal for 2005.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As previously noted, Le Mars Community School District uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Board of Education annually adopts a budget
following a required public notice and hearing. The budget may be amended during the
year utilizing statutorily prescribed procedures. The District’s budget is prepared on
the cash basis. During the year expenditures did not exceed the certified amounts.

There was some small variance in the District’s budget in comparison to actual results.
Total actual revenue was 2.1% less than budgeted, while total actual expenditures were
3.5% less than budgeted. Detail can be found in the supplementary information section
of this report as required.



Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

By the end of 2004, the District had invested $14,717,882 in a broad range of assets,
including school buildings, athletic facilities, computer and audio-visual equipment,
and administrative offices. (See Figure A-8) (More detailed information about !
capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements.) Total depreciation
expense for the year equaled $505,904.

Figure A-§ - Capital Assets (in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type Total District
Activities Activities
2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004

Land 4 4 - -—- 4 4
Const. In Progress -- 34 - - -- 34
Buildings 10.0 10.10 - --- 10.0 10.10
Equip/Furniture 3.7 3.87 .04 .04 3.74 3.87
Total 14.1 14.71 .04 04 14.14 | 14.75

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the District had $1,475,000 of general obligation bonds outstanding.
See Figure A-9 below.

Figure A-9 | | | | I
Qutstanding Long-Term Debt (in millions of dollars)
Bonds Notes Total District
2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004
78 40 1.45 1.07 2.23 1.47

14




Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

At the time these financial statements were prepared, the District was aware of the
following existing circurnstances that could affect its tinancial health in the future:

¢ The weak national economy that has adversely impacted the State of Towa’s
budget has translated into reduced levels of state funding. The State passed on
a 4.3% across-the-board cut in state aid to school districts during 2004. It
remains to be seen whether or not the State will live up to its total obligation for
2005.

¢ Under Jowa’s school funding formula, the District is highly dependent on
student enrollment. While enrollment has experienced modest growth the last
several vears, the count completed in September 2004 shows a slight enrollment
decline of 17 students. A prolonged period of declining enrollment would have
a very significant negative impact on the District’s financial health.

s (Other noteworthy factors-

o The District’s 1991 bond will be paid off during FY 2005.

o The District’s Capital Loan Notes will be paid off during FY 2007.

o The District will begin receiving revenue from a one (1) cent local option
sales tax during FY 2005. This tax was voted in for ten (10) years and
will provide very significant revenue for capital repairs and
improvement.

o The District’s total tax levy rate is comparatively quite low at $12.34 per
$1,000 taxable valuation for FY 2005.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers,
and investors and creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to
demonstrate the District’s accountability of the money it receives. If you have questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact Kent Schwicsow,
Assistant Superintendent, Le Mars Community School District, 921 3 Ave. SW, Le
Mars, [A 51031.



LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2004

Primary Government Business
Governmental Type
Activites Activities ' Total
ASSETS
Cash and Pocled Investments 4,855,819 % 37,288 § 4,893,107
Investments {Restricted) 37.030 37,030
Receivables:
Property Tax 62,548 62,548
Succeeding Year Property Tax 5,517,877 5,517,877
Accrued Interest 3,780 3,780
Accounts 25,041 25,041
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 120,255 120,255
fnventories 12,105 12,105
Land 393,275 393,275
Construction in Progress 344,817 344,817
Infrastructure, Froperty and Equipment, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 4) 6,625,297 4,351 6,629,648
Total Assets 17,985,739 53,744 18,039,483
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 259,453 37 269,490
Deferred Revenue 5 517,878 9,318 5,527,196
Accrued Wages 1,499,697 11,215 1,510,912
Accrued Compensated Absences 46,485 48,485
Accrued Interest Payable 5,359 5,359
Long Term Dabt Due Within One Year 785,000 785,000
Long Terrn Debt Due in More Than One Year 680,000 690,000
Total Liabilities 8,813,872 20,570 8,834,442
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 5,883,030 4,351 5,887,381
Restricted for:
Scholarships 101,701 101,701
Debt Service 13,3586 13,356
Student Activities 169,803 169,903
Unrestricted 3,003,877 28,823 3,032,700
Total Net Assets 9,171,867 § 33,174 8 9,205,041

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOCL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Program
Revenues Program Revenues
Operating Capitai
Charges for Grants N Grants
Functians/Programs Exnpenses Services Contributions 'Contributions
Primary Gevernment:
Governmental Activities:
instruction:
Regular 3 7,774,075 3 220,215 3 352,675
Spedial Programs 1,695,325 104,536
Vaocational 65,760 7,738 37,715
Co-cirricular 824,735 6B5,076
Adult/Continuing Educalion 4,412 257
Support Services:
Guidarnice £(35,589
Health 77,038
Other Student Support 33,526 1,20%
improvement of instruction 105,350 71,135
Educational Media ’ 383,760
Board of Education 52,535
Executive Administration 391,732
Building Administration Services 8355,3G0
Business Administration 61,202
Operations and Maintenance 1,088,537 11,752
Student Transportation 408,217 (2,468) 78,718
Monprogram - Management 123,537
Debt Service:
interest 93,345
Intergavernmental:
AEA Flowthrough 857,356 557,856
Total governmental activities 15,386,675 1.008,377 1,656,100
Primary Business Type Activity
School Mutrition Fund B27,422. 271,035 233.606
Tatal Schiool District 3 15,894,057 } 1,279.412 5 1,929.7068 3

General Revenues;
Property taxes
Interest on Investments
State aid nct restricted to specific programs
Loss on disposal of Assets
Contributions
Miscellaneous
Foster Care
Transfers
Total general ravenues and transiers
Charge in net assels
Met assets - beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net agsats - beginning, as restated

Met assets - ending

See Accempanying Mates to Financial Statemems
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Net {Expense) Ravenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business
Activities Type Activities Total

$ (6,701,185) % (5,701,153)
{1,580,729) {1,590,72%)
(20,307) (20.307)
(159,828) {159.625)
(4,185) {4,155)
(485,689) 1463, 885)
(77,028) (77.038)
(32,337) (32,337)
{34,215) (34,215)
(383,760} {383,78C)
{52,635) (52.635)
(391,732) {351.732)
(299,960) {659,860)
{81,202) (51,202)
{1,076,779) (1,078,773)
(533,084} {h33,964)
(123,537) (123,537)
{93,345) (93,345
(12,662,158) (12,682,198}
kS (122,781} (122,781)
(12,662,188) 1122,781) (52,784,579}

5,857,406 - 5,867,408

97,681 77 47,758

7,244,306 . 7,244,308
(4,347) - (4,247)

37,959 - 37,955

22,331 - 22,331

1,367 - 1,367

{80,818} 80,818 -

13,175,885 80,895 ©3,256,780

513,687 (41,888 471,501

8,916,459 75,060 8,931,549
{258,309} - (258,308)

5,658,180 75,060 8,733,240

5 9,171,867 % 33,174 3 9,205,041

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
18



LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHCOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2004

M:I-mag';ement
General ' Levy
Assets
Cash and Poogled |nvestments R 4,196,327
Receivables:
Properiy Tax 48,889 2,912
Future Property Tax 4,388,274 282,000
Accrued interaest 3,780
Accounts 986
Due from Cther Funds 30,083
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 120,255
Investment (Restricted)
Total Assets 8,786,554 284,912
Liabiiities and Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payabie 43,574
Cue to Cther Funds 30,063
Deferred Revenue 4,393,758 282,481
Accrued Wages 1,488,697
Accrued Vacation Payable 46,485
Total Lighilities 5,983,514 312,544
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Schoiarships
Reserved for Debt Service
Unreserved for:
General Fund 2,803,040
Special Revenue Fund (27,632)
Tetal Fund Balances 2,803,040 (27,832)
Total Liabilities and Equity 8 8,786,554 % 284,912

See Accompanving Motes to Financial Statements
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Cther Total

PPEL Debt Governmental Governmental
Fund Service Funds Funds
$ 415,097 S g,821 § 234574 % 4 855 819
6,627 4.140 62,548
430,703 418,500 5.517,877
3,780
24,055 25,041
30,063
120,255
37,030 37,030
876,482 432,861 271,604 10,652,413
225,879 269,453
30,083
431,325 419,505 5,527,069
1,499,697
46,485
657,204 419,505 - 7,372,767
101,701 101,701
13,356 13,356
2,803,040
219,278 169,903 361,549
219,278 13,356 271,604 3,279,644
$ 875,482 § 432,661 S 271,604

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net assets are different because:
Infrasiructure, property, and equipment used in governmental activities are nat financial resources

and, therefore, are not reparted in the funds 7,363,389
Accrued Interest on long term debt not reported on the modified accrual basis
of accounting (5,359)
Deferrad revenues and accrued expenses from the balance sheet that previde current financiai
resources for governimental activities 9,191
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current pericd and therefore zre not reparted
in the funds (1,475,000}
Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 9,171,867

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Manragement FFEL
General Fund Fund
Revenue: '
Locat Sources 4957412 § 263,575 B 721,534
State Appropriations 8,531,215
Federal Appropriations 405,558
Total Revenus 13,804,185 263,575 721,534
Expenditures:
Governmental Activities:
Instruction:
Regular 7,559,311 372,445
Special Programs 1,655,325
Vocational 65,751
Co-cirricular 313,312 93,411
Nonpublic 4,412
Support Services:
Guidance 465,689
Health 77.038
Cther Student Suppert
Improvement of Instruction 105,350
Educaticnal Media 341,209
Board of Education 52,625
Executive Administration 391,732
Building Administration 859,960
Business Administration 61,202
QOperations and Maintenance 943,182 141,278 9,472
Student Transportation 501,384 56,312
Aclivity Accounts
Other Expenditures:
Management 123,537
Debt Service:
Principai
Interest
Intergovernmental:
AEA Flowthrough 857,858
Total Expenditures 14,105,453 264,816 531.640
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (211,273) (1,241} 189,324
Qther Financing Sources (Uses):
Qnperating Transfers In 82,588
Operating Transfers Out (434,388)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 82,588 - (434,388)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses {128,685) {1.241)} (244,484}
Fund Balances (Deficit)-Beginning of Year 2,931,725 {26,391) 463,772
Fund Balances (Deficit)- End of Year 2803040 § (27,632) % 219,278

See Accompanying Notes 1o Financial Statements
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Other Total
et Gavernmental Governmaentai
Service Funds Funds

420,757 § 886,105 $ 7,046,383
8,531,215
405,558

420,757 586,105 15,986,156

7,941,785
1,685,325
55,761
406,723
4,412

465,689

77,038

33,5486 33,546
105,380

341,289

52,835

361,732

859,860

61,202

1,083,633

557,706

488,992 488,882

123,537

755,000 755,000
95,058 93,958

857,856

850,858 522,538 16,275,410

(430,201) 163,567 (289,254)

434,388 516,976
(163,4086) (587,794)

434,388 (163,406) (80,818)

4,187 161 (370,072)

2,189 271,443 3,648,718

13,356 S 271.804 3§ 3,279,546

See Accompanying Nctes io Financial Statements
22



LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHCOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
[N FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Amounts regarted for governimantal activities in the statement of activities are different becauss:

MNet change in fund balances - totai governmental funds (page 22) 3 (370,072)

Governmental funds repert capital outfays, including infrastructure, as expenditures. However, in the
staternant of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the ameunt by which czpital outlays exceeded

depraciation expense in the current year. 161,120

Governmental funds report only the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets as revenue whereas the
staterment of activities reports the gain or loss on the szle or disposal of fixed assets.
This is the effect on the change in net assets on the statement of activities, (4,347}

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current fincancial resources

are not not reported as revenues, (20,628)

Accruaed Expenses rot reperted on modified accruai basis 2,614

The repayment of the principal of banded long-tarm debt consumes the current finarcial resources of
governmental funds without affecting the net assets. The statement of activities does not refiect the

payment of principal on bonded long-term dett. The principal paid on bonded long-term debt curing

the current year was: 755,000

Change 'n net assets of governmantsl activities (page 13) 3 513,687

See Accompanying MNotes to Financiai Statements
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Proprietary Fund

School Nutrition

Fund
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services: 266,605
Miscellaneous 4,430
Total Operating Revenue 271,035
Operating Expenditures:
Food Service Operations:
Salaries 272,696
Food 325,624
Delivery 9,618
Supplies 14,138
Telephone 732
Other 3,040
Depreciation 1,574
Total Operating Expenses 627,422
Operating Loss {356,387)
Non-Operating Revenues :
Interest Income 77
State Lunch Reimbursements 10,877
National School Lunch Program 190,225
Federal Food Cammodities Received 32,504
Total Non-Operating Revenues 233,683
Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers from other Funds 80,818
Change in net assets {41,886)
Net Assets-beginning 75,060
33,174

Net Assets-ending

See Accompanying Notes ta Financial Statements
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LEMARS COMMUNITY SCHOQOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Business Type Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

School Nutrition

Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers or premiums 3 280,354
Cash payments for salaries and benefits {272,695)
Cash payments for goods and services {311,428)
Total cash {used) by operating activities {303,769)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Federal and state appropriations received 203,973
Transfers from other funds 80,818
Total cash provided by noncapital financing activities 284,781
Cash flows from investing activities:
interest on investments 77
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (18,901
Cash and pooled investments - beginning of year 58,189
Cash and pooled investments - end of year $ 37,288
Reconciliation of operating {loss) tc net cash used in
operating activities:
Operating (loss) {356,387)
Depreciation Expense 1,574
Change in assets and ligbilities:
Commodities Used 32,504
5,035

Decrease in inventory
Increase in deferred revenue 9,318

increase in accrued wages 4488

(Decrease) in accounts payable (301)

Net cash {used) in operating activities b {303,7689)
Supplemental schedule of noncash noncapital financing activities:

Federal food commaodities received $ 32,504

See Accampanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LEMARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004

i 2004
Cash and Temporary Cash Investments $ 3745
Total Net Assets 3,745
Liabilities:
Other Payzhles 3,745

Unrestricted Nef Assets -

Net Assels -

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Le Mars Community School District is a political subdivision of the State of lowa and operates public
schools for children in grades kindergerten through twelve and special education pre-kindergarten.
Adcitionally, the District either operates or sponsors various aduit education programs. These courses
include remedial education as well as vocational and recreational courses. The geographic area served
includes the cities of Le Mars, Merrill and Brunsville and a large part of the agricultural community in
Plymouth County and is financially dependent on property taxes of the area and state aid payments for
over 80% of its receipts. The district is governed by a Board of Education whose members are elected on
a non-partisan basis.

A

Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, Le Mars Community Schocl District has included all funds,
organizations, agencies, boards, commissicns and authorities. The District has also considered all
patential component units for which it is financially accountabie, ard other organizations for which
the nature and significance of their relationship with the District are such that exclusion would cause
the District's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board has set forth criteriz to be cansidered in determining financial accountability.
These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing baody, and (1) the
ability of the District to impose its will on that organization or (2) the peotential for the organization to
provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the District.

in January 1992 the District established the Le Mars Community Schoal District Foundation by
appointing a board of trustees to incorperate a foundation under the lowa Nen-Profit Corporation Act,
lowa Code Chapter 504A. The focus of the Foundation is exclusiveiy for charitable, scientific, and
educational purposes of the District. The financial activity of the Foundation is included in the
financial statements of the Le Mars Community Schoal District as a cemponent unit for the year
ended June 30, 2004. The Foundation has elected a December 31 fiscal year end and, therefore,
the activity of the Foundation included in these financial statements is for the fiscal year enced
December 31, 2003.

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principies (GAAP) that apply to governmental units. All funds created under the authority
of the State Code of lowa, the aperations of which are under the centrol of the District's governing
body, and by financial reporting standards for governmental units are included herewith.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is responsiole for establishing U.S. GAAP for state
and local government through its prorouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments
are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued through November 30, 1989 (when appiicable) that do not confiict with or contradict GASB
proncuncements. The District applies only the applicatle FASBE pronouncements issued prior to
November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting its proprietary operations. The more significant
accounting policies established in U.S. GAAP and used by the District are discussed beiow.

In June 1999, GASB unanimously approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements- and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. Certain significant
changes in the statement include the following:

a. A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the
District’s averall financial position and result of operations.

b. Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all the District’s
activities.

¢c. A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds of the District.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Also approved by GASB was Statement No. 38, Certaln Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements {including notes to
the financial statements). '
Jointly Governed Qrganizations - The District participates in a jointly governed organization that
provides services to the District but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no
ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. The District is a member
of the Plymouth County Assessor's Conference Board.

B. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide {reporling the District as a
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District’s major funds). Both the government-
wide and fund financial statements categerize primary activities as either governmental or business-
type. The District’s general, special revenue, and debt service funds are classified as governmental
activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns (@) are presented on a consclidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on a full accrual,
economic resource hasis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as weil as long-term
debt and obligations. The District’s net assets are reported in three parts- invested in capital assets,
net of related debt; restricted net assels; and unrestricted net assets.

The Government-wide Statement of Activities reparts bath the gross and net cost of each of the
District's functions and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general
government expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating grants, and
capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type
activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital)
grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change
in the District's net assets resulting from the current year's activities.

C. Fund Accouniing

The District uses funds to report on its financial positicn and the results of its operations. Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into
three types: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. The emphasis in fund financial statements is
on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds
by category are summarized into a single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the
determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements. The various funds reported in the financial statements are grouped into fund types as
follows:
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOQOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
_June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are
financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the District’s expendable financial resources and the
related liabiiities, except those accounted for in proprietary funds, are accounted fbr through
governmentat funds. The measurement focus is on determination of financial pasition and changes
in financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following are the District's
gavernmental funds.

General Fund — The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District. 1t is used to
account for all financial resources except these required to be accounted for in another fund.
The General Fund accounts for the instructional and most of the support service programs of
the District’s operations. Revenue of the General Fund consists primarily of iccal property taxes
and state government aid.

Special Revenue Fund — Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources {cther than expendable trusts, or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted for
specified purposes. Each of the District’'s Special Revenue Funds has been established to
reflect restricted revenue sources provided to school districts by the lowa State Statutes. The
funds included in this category and their purpose are as follows:

Management Fund — Accounts for a levy of forty-nine cents per thousand dollars of
assessed valuation in the district for insurance premiums and unemplayment
compensation insurance claims.

Physical Plant and Equipment Levy — Accounts for a regular levy of thirty-three cents per
thousand dollars of assessed valuation in the district as well as an additional special voted
property tax levy of one dollar per thousand doilars of assessed valuation in the district for
use in purchase of equipment and repairing and improving schoothouse buildings and
grounds.

Student Activity Fund — Accounts for student ciubs and other activities not necessary to
regular instruction services that are financed partly or entirely by admissions and student
fund-raising activities.

District Foundaticn Fund — The LeMars Community School District Foundation represents
a not-for-profit foundation that is 2 compenent unit of the District. The money raised by the
foundation is exclusively for charitable, scientific, and educational purposes of the District.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and
the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in
net assets, financiai position, and cash flows. Operating revenues and expenses are distingllished
from ncn-operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a propristary fund's
principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses. The principal operating revenues of enterprise funds are
charges to customers for services. Operating expenses consist of cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. The U.S. generally accepted
accouniing principles used are those applicable to similar businesses in the private secter.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Enterprise Fund — The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations: ({a) which are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs {expenses, including depreciation} of providing goods or
sarvices to the general public on a centinuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public palicy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The fund included in this
category and its purpose is as follows:

School Nutrition Fund -~ Accounts for the food service operations of the District.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or cther funds. Theses
inciude expendable trust funds that are accounted for in essentially the same manner as
Governmental Funds. The following is the District’s fiduciary fund:

Agency Fund - The Flex account is the Dislrict's cafeteria plan. Employees of the District
deposit monies into this fund, which are held by the District until they are disbursed back to the
depositor.

D. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e. revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e. expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets.

All governmental fund types and the expendable trust fund and the agency fund use the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under the medified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded
when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available” means collectible within the
current period or soen enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The
District considers property tax as available if it is collected within 60 days after year-end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on
general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due.

Because of their flow of current financial resources measurement focus, expenditure recognition for
governmental fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities, Since
they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental
fund type expenditures or fund liabilities.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, interest revenue, and state foundation aid.
Revenue from federal and state grants and similar programs are recognized when a District has
done everything necessary to establish its right to the revenue. Usually this is at the time an
expenditure has been incurred for an authorized purpose.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOQL DISTRICT
Naotes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGLICIES (CONTINUED)

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With
this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds zre
included on the balance sheet. Propriety Fund type-operating statements present increases (e.g.
revenue) and decreases (e.g. expenses) in net total assets. in reporting the financial activity of its
proprietary funds, the District applies all applicabie GASB pronouncements as well as the following
aronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the
Committee on Accounting Procedure.

Proprietary fund types utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

E. Budgetary Accounting

In accordance with the Code of lowa, the Board of Education annually adepts a budget foilfowing
required public notice and hearing for all funds, except expendable trust funds and agency funds.
The budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. The
District’s budget is prepared on the cash basis.

Formal and legal budgetary conirol for the certified budget is based upon four major classes of
expenditures known as functional areas, not by fund or fund type. These four functional areas are
instruction, support services, non-instructional programs and other expenditures. Although the
hudget document presents functional area expenditures or expenses by fund, the legal level of
control is at the aggregated functicnal area ievel, not at the fund or fund type level. The Code of
lowa alsc provides that District disbursements in the General Fund may not exceed the amount
autharized by the school finance formula.

There were no amendments made during the fiscal year ending June 30, 20C4. The original budget
by functional area was as follows:

Original & Actual Variance

Final Budget {Cash Basis) Favorable
instruction 3 g BB5,865 g 9,705,737 5 160,132
Student Support Services 5,612,466 5,300,353 312,113
Nan-Instructional 105,370 ' 86,121 9,749
Other Expenditures 1,598,078 1,510,538 85,540
Total 5 17,180,283 $ 16,612,749 3 567,534

A comparison of cash basis revenues, expenditures or expenses and changes in balance with the
cash basis budget, which is legally controlled by functional areas, not fund type is presented as
required supplemental information following the notes. Operations and ending fund balances onthe
cash and modified accrual or accrual basis have been reconciled as follows:
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other Financing Sourges (Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Baiance

Governmental Fund Types

General
Modified
Accrual Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 13,831,632 % (37,447) $ 13,854,185
14,116,009 (10,551} ) 14,105,458
{184,377} (26,896) (211,273)
82,586 - 82,588
4,328,175 {1,396,454) 2,931,725
$ 4226350 _S? (1,423,350) % 2,803,040
Governmental Fund Types
Property, Plant, and Eguipment
Modified
Accrual Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 727,402 $ (5,868) $ 721,534
306,127 225,513 531,640
421,275 (231,381) 189,894
{434,388) - (434,388)
428 210 35,662 463,772
§ 415,087 S  (195,819) % 219,278
o Governmental Fund Types
Management Levy Fund
Modified
Accrual Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 263,227 $ 348 S 263,575
264,816 - . 264,816
(1,589) 348 (1.241)
(28,474} 2,083 (26,391)
_3 {30,063) $ 2,431 S (27,632}
Governmental Fund Types
Non-Major Governmental Fund
Maodified
Accrual Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 638,776 - S 638,776
488,992 - 488,992
144,784 - 149,784
(163,4006) - (163,408)
183,525 - 183,525
$ 169,903 - 3 169,903
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOCL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues

Expenditures

Neot

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other Financing Sources {(Uses)
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

Governmental Fund Types

Debt Service

Modified
Accrual Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 420,525 3 232 $ 420,757
852,682 (1,724} B50.958
{432,157) 1,956 {430,201)
434,388 - 434,388
7,590 1,579 9,168
$ 9,821 $ 3,535 5 13,356
Governmentat Fund Types
Total
Modified
Accrual Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 15,981,562 £ (42,734) 5 15,938,828
16,028,626 213,239 16,241,865
(47,064) {255,973) (303,037)
(80,818} - (8C.818)
4819,030 1,357,230 3,561,800
5 4791148 $ 1,613,203 b 3,177,945
Proprietary Fund Types
School Lunch Fund
Modified
Accruat Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 484,404 g 20,314 3 504,718
584,123 43,259 627 422
(99,71%9) (22,985) (122,704}
80,818 - 30,818
56,189 18,871 75,080
$ 37.288 b {4,114} 5 33,174

The following accounting policies e!re followed in preparing the financial statements:

Cash and Temporary Cash Investments — The cash balances of most District funds are pooled and
invested. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund type considers all shart-term
cash investments that are highly liquid are cansidered fo be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents, are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and at the day of purchase, they have a maturity date no
longer than three months. Cash investments not meeting the definition of cash equivalents at June 30,
2004 included certificates of deposits of $75,000 with ariginal maturity dates longer than three months.

Interfund Activity — The only interfund balances outstanding at year-end were between the General
Fund and the Management Fund. The purpose of this transactiocn was to eliminate the negative cash
balance in the Management Fund. The effect of this activity has been eliminated from the government-

wide financial statements.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOGOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June_iq, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Local Tax Receivable — Property tax in Governmental Funds are accounted for using the maodified
accrual basis of accounting.

Froperty tax recelvable is recognized in these funds on the levy or iien date, which is the date that the tax
asking is certified by the Board of Education tc the County Board of Supervisors. Current year‘delinquent
property taxes recelvable represents unpaid taxes from the current year. The succeeding year property
tax receivable represents taxes certified by the Board of Education to be collected in the next fiscal year
for the purposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of Education is
required to certify its budget to the County Auditor by April 15 of each year for the subsequent fiscal year.
However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the foilowing fiscal year becomes effective
on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has been recorded,
the related revenue is deferred and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied.

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September and March of
the fiscal year with a 1'2% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1, 2002
assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004 and
reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified to the County Board of Supervisors in April 2003,

Inventories — Inventory items are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method for purchased items
and contributed value for government commodities.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are valued at historical cost ar estimated historical
cost if actual histerical cost is not available. Contributed assets are reported at their fair market value
as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. The District’s capitalization thresheld is $1,000.00. Depreciation on all assets is provided
on the straight-line basis over the following estimated usefui lives:

Buildings and structures 20- 50 years
Machinery and equipment 5- 20 years

Proprietary Fund — Proprietary fund type property and equipment is accounted for at historical costs or
estimated historical costs where historical cost is not available. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date received.

Accumulated depreciation is reported on the Proprietary Fund balance sheet. Depreciation has been
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method The estimated useful lives for
machinery and equipment is 12 years.

Accrued Payroll and Related Expenditures — Payroll and related expenditures for teachers with annual
contracts corresponding to the current school year, which are payable in July and August, have been
accrued as liabilities.

Deferred Revenue — Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means
collectible within the current pericd or soon encugh thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. Deferred revenue represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, hut the related
revenue has not been recognized since the assets are not collected within the current period or expected
to be collected scon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabitiies of the current period. Deferred
revenue consists of unspent grant proceeds, the succeeding year property tax receivable as well as
delinquent property tax receivable and other receivables not collected within sixty days after year end,
excluding grant receivables.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Long-Term Liabilities — In the government-wide financial statements, leng-term debt and other lang-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmentai activities column in the Statement of Net Assets.

Salaries and Benefits Payable — Payroll and related expenditures for teachers with annual contracts
corresponding to the current school year, which are payable in July and August, have been accrued as
liabilities.

Compensated Absences — Vested or accumulated vacation leave including related emplayee benefits
that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an
expenditure and a fund lizbility of the governmental fund that will pay it. Vested or accumulated vacation
leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to
employees. No liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.

Encumbrances — The District does not utilize an encumbrance system.

Fund Equity - In tha governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance are reported
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legaily restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose.

Restricted Net Assets — In the government-wide Statement-of Net Assets, net assets are reported as
resiricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations of other governments ar imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

NOTE 2 - DEPQSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The School District's deposits at June 30, 2004 were entirely covered by Federal Depaository Insurance or
by a multiple financial insiitution collateral pool in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the members of the pool to insure there will be no
loss of public funds.

The Schooi is authorized by statute to invest public funds in cbligations of the United States government,
its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of depasit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured
depository institutions approved by the Board of Education; prime eligible hankers acceptances; certain
high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements, certain registered open-end
management investment companies; and certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district. There were no differences in investments held during the year from

those at June 30, 2004,

At June 30, 2004 the carrying amount of the School District's deposits were as follows:

Carrying Bank
Balance Balance
All Fund Types § 4893.107 $ 5,243.939
Fair
Investments Not Subject to Risk Categorization: Value
Investment in Main Street Income and Growth Fund
{Recorded at Fair Value determined by quoted market price) £ 31810
Policy
Cash Vaiue
Mew Yaork Life Insurance Policy g 5,220
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2004

NOTE 3 — AREA EDUCATION AGENCY

The District is required by the Code of lowa to budget for its share of the media and educaticnal services
provided through the Area Education Agency. The District’'s actual amount for this purpese totaled
$657,856 for the year ended June 30, 2004, and is recorded in the General Fund.

NOTE 4 - CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets fellows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets heing depreciated:
Buiidings

Vehicles

Furniture and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings

Vehicles

Furniture and equipment

Tatal Accumulated Depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2003 Additions Deletions 2004
$ 393,275 - - $ 393,275
- $ 344 817 - 344 817
393,275 344,817 - 738,092
10,012,967 15,209 - 10,208,175
1,275,128 56,312 $ (41,308) 1,251,132
2,471,019 239,112 (87,833) 2,622 298
13,760,114 310,633 {128,141) 13,941,606
4,394,820 196,490 - 4 591,310
820,128 106,822 41,308 885,642
1,721,825 201,018 83,486 1,839,357
6,836,773 504,330 124,794 7,316,309
... 6,823,341 (183,967) {4,347) 6,625,297
§ 7,216,616 $ 151,120 3 “(‘4”.347) $ 7,363,389

Construction in progress at June 30, 2004, for the governmental activities consisted of costs associated
with the middle school classroom re-modeling project.

The Juiy 1, 2003 accumulated depreciation balance has been changed from what was reported in the
June 30, 2003 financial statements. This change was made to reflect the prior peried adjustment, which is

explained in more detail in Note 12.

Depreciation Expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction

Educational Media
Co-Curricular Instruction
Transportation

Total Depreciation Expenses — Governmental Activities
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOQL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 4 - CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Asummary of the School Nutrition enterprise fund preperty, plant, and equipment at June 30, 2004 is as
follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2003 Additions | Retirements 2004
Equipment $ 38,184 - § 33,184
Accumulated Depreciation (32,259 § 1,574 - {33.833)
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net 5 5925 § 1574 - % 4,351

The total of $1,574 of business-type activities depreciation was charged to the food service operation’s
function.

NOTE 5 — RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The District contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-sharing
muiticle-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. [IPERS provides
retirement and death benefits that are established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries.
IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obiained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, Des
Moines, lowa 50306-9117.

Flan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual salary and the District is required o
contribute 5,75% of annual payroll. Caontribution requirements are established by State statute. The
District's confribution to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $561,655,
$539,923, and $520,278 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

NOTE 6 — EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Schocl District employees accumulate vacation and also accumuiate sick leave hours for subsequent use
only znd the sick leave benefits are not paid to the employess in the form of additional compensation
upon termination, retirement or death. Sick leave is not reflected as an accrued liability since it is not
vested upon termination and the measurabie amount of probable use cannot be accurately determined.

NOTE 7 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Certified employess retiring with at least 10 years of service and ége 55 are provided single coverage

health insurance until they reach the age of 65. The benefits are funded on a pay as you go basis. The
district paid $104,028 in henefits during the year ended June 30, 2004, There are currently 22 participants

receiving benefits.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 8 —- GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

The following is a summary of bond transactions of the District for the year ended June 30, 2004:

General
Obligation
Bonds Payable July 1, 2003 $ 2,230,000
Bonds Issued -
Bonds Redeemed {755,000}
Bonds Payable June 30, 2004 $ 1,475.000
Details of the above bonds payable at June 30, 2004 are as follows:
Date Final Amount Outstanding
Of Interest Due Annual Originally June 30,
Issue Rate Date Payments _Issued 2004
General Obligation Bonds 1997 4.3-4.65% 6-1-05 $25,000-400,000 $2,200,000 § 405,000
Go Capital Loan Note 2001 34 -465% 6-1-07 $290,000-400,000 51,750,000 1,070,000

L3 1475000

The Annual Reguirements to Amortize all Debt Outstanding as of June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2005 $ 785,000 $ 64,300
2006 400,000 30,686
2007 290,000 13,486

$ 1,475,000 $ 108,472

513,356 is available in the Debt Service Fund to service the General Obligation Bonds.
NOTE 9 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE
As of June 30, 2004, the following fund had a deficit fund balance in the amount shown:

Special Revenue:
Management 27,632

The deficit will be funded through future property tax revenue.

NOTE 10 — RISK FINANCING

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related {o torts, theft of, damage to and desiruction of
assets; errors and amissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During the year ended
June 30, 2004 the District has elected to purchase commercial insurance to cover against the risk of loss.

There were no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage during the past three years nor any
significant reductions in coverage.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

NOTE 11 — CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The District entered into a construction contract totaling $711,770 for the middle school classroom re-
modeiing project. At Junes 30, 2004, appreximately $293,300 had been expended on the project, leaving
a remaining commitment of $418,470. The remaining contract amount will be paid as work on the project
progresses. '

f

NOTE 12 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
It was discovered that in the implementation of GASE No. 34 and the initial depreciation of governmenta
assets, the depreciation scheduie contained a calcuiztion error, which went undetected and thus

understated accumulated depreciaticn and overstated ending net assets at June 30, 2003. This error
was detected in the current year, the effect of the correction is a change in teginning net assets of

$258,309.
NOTE 13 ~ INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2004 is as follows:

Transfer To Transfer From Amount
Debt Service PPEL $ 434,388
School Nutrition Fund General 80,818
General Student Activity 163,406
Total $ 673612

Transfers generally move revenues from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources te the fund
statutorily required to expend the resources.

38



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOQL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual {Cash Basis)-
General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds
For theYear Ended June 3G, 2004

General Fund 1
Variance

Original with budget
and Final Total Favarahle
Budget Actual {Unfavorakle}
Raceipts:
Local Sources
Local Taxas $ 4,461,418 $ 4,487 441 $ 26,023
Tuition 341,000 358,298 13,298
Cther 243,500 134,901 {114,599}
State Sources 8,812,033 8,535,720 {276,313)
Federal Sources 361,000 417,272 58,272
Total Revenues 14,224 951 13,931,632 ©(293,319)
Expenditures:
Instruction G,827,869 9,660,579 167,260
Support Services 4,093,466 3,797,574 301,892
Non-Instructional Programs 870 - 870
Other Expenditures : 705,120 657,856 47 264
Total Expenditures 14,633,325 © - 14,116,00% ] 517,318
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expendituras (408,374} (184,377)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Cperaiing Transfers From Cther Funds - 82,588
Operating Transfers Te Other Funds - -

Total Other Financing Sources {(Uses) - 82,588
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources

Qver Expenditures and Other (Uses) (408,374) (101,789)

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 4.081,933 4328179

Fund Balance End of Year 5 3,673,559 $ 4,226,380

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Management Levy Property, Plant, and Equipment

Variance Variance
Original with budget Original with budget
and Final Total Favorable and Final Total Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 262,000 $ 263,227 3 1,227 S 707549 § 708,744
- - - 5,000 18,658 § 13,658
262,000 263,227 1,227 712,549 727,402 13,658
38,000 45,158 (7,158) - - -
85,000 123,537 (28,537) 238,000 306,127 {68.127)
105,000 96,121 8,879 - - -
238,000 264816 $ (26,816) 238,000 306,127 8§ {68,127}
24,000 {1,589) 474,549 421,275
- - {434,388) {434,388)
. - {434,388) (434,388)
24,000 {1,589) 40,161 (13,113)
(27,272) (28,474} 419,104 428,210
3 (3,272 $ {30.063) 3 459265  § 415,097

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund

For theYear Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 1
Revenues: '
Local Sources:
Local Tax:
Property Tax $ 4473613
Mobile Home Tax 14,618
4,488,231
Other Local Sources:
Interest on Investments 73,458
Tuition from Other Districts 303,384
Rent 11,752
Miscellaneous 26524
415 118
4,603,345
Other Fund Revenues
Refunds and Miscellaneous 54 063
4,957 412
State Sources:
Foundation Aid-District's Share 7,244 306
Teachers Compensation Allocation 161,937
Educational Excellence Program:
Phase i 22,833
Phase Il 182,275
Nan-Public Transportation Aid 76,7198
Vocational Education Aid 12,9359
lowa Early Intervention Block Grant 124,338
AEA Flow-Through 657,856
Other State Aid 47,962
8,531,215
Federal Sources:
Title | Grants {o Local Educational Agencies 177,042
Teacher Quaiity Program 71,135
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities-States Grants 9,959
nnovative Education Program Strategies (Titie V! Program} 13,513
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 24,776
Special Educaticn - Grants to States 985,675
Other 13,458
405,558
Total Revenue $ 13,884 185
Continued
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
General Fund - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Schedule 1 (Continued)

Expenditures; i

43

Instruction:
Regular Program Instruction:
Salaries $ 5,368,832
Emplcyee Benefits 1,645,067
Ceniracted Services (9,746)
Travel 7,588
Pecstage 8,250
Cpen Enroliment 346,187
General Supplies 36,542
Instructional Supplies 40,719
Textbooks 80,080
Equipment-Additional 12,307
Equipment-Replacement 11,986
Workbooks 20,338
Repairs- Band Instruments 1,063
7,569,311
Vocaticnal Pragram Instruction:
Cantract Services 383
General Supplies 7,282
Instructional Supplies 8,425
Technology Supplies 46,482
Travel 590
Equipment-Replacement 2,599
85,761
Special Program Instruction:
Salaries 1,186,073
Employee Benefits 354,746
Contracted Services 6,368
Travel 224
General Supplies 12,642
Instructicnal Supplies 8,275
Supplemental Textbooks 1,883
Equipment-Additional 27,580
Tuition 87,534
1,695,325
Coacurricular Program Insiruction and Sports:
Salaries 237,730
Employee Benefits 62,050
Contract Services 5,010
Instructional Supplies 1,285
Travel 7237
313,312
Adult/Continuing Education Instruction:
Salaries 1,925
Employee Benefits 541
General Supplies 1,946
4,412
Total Instruction 5 9,648,121
Continued



LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 1 {Continued)

Student Support Services:
Career Guidance and Testing:
Salaries
Employes Benefits
Contract Services
Travel
General Supplies
instructional Supplies

Heazlth Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Travel
Contractual Services
Generai Suppiies

improvement of [nstruction Services:
Salaries
Employee Benefis
Travel
Open Enrcliment
Contractual Services
General Supplies
Instructional Supplies

Educational Media Servicas:
Employee Benefils
General Supplies
Instructional Supplies
General Library Books
Reference Books
Periodicals
Audio-Visual
Repair Parts
Software
Equipment-Additicnal

Operation and Maintenance Services:

Salaries

Emplcyee Benefits
Repairs-Equipment
Repairs-Buildings and Grounds
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3 342,617
94,763

8,360

156

16,783

3,010

465,689

48,053
21,591
526
2,508
4,360

77,038

856,410
11,522
577

34
2,800
1,66C
2,347

105,350

244 574
61,794
4,121
G285
11,508
881
5,330
882
7,922
2,786
956

341,298

456,845

147,929

4,173

3 34,822
Continued



LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
General Fund - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Schedule 1 (Continued)

Student Support Services (continued):
Operation and Maintenance Services (Continued):

Telephone 3 11,085
Utilities 256,034
Paper Supplies 6,359
Preservatives 2,601
Travel 789
Cleaning and Maintenance Supplies 15,237
Elecirical Supplies 5,267
Equipment-Additional 1,735
Equipment-Replacement 296
' 943,182
Student Transpertation:
Salaries 334,789
Employee Benefits 69,267
Purchased Services 16,446
Fuel 54,487
Lubricants 2,557
Tires and Tubes 5,631
Repairs and Maintenance 16,174
Parent Reimbursement G
General Supplies 1,377
Equipment Replacement 8460
501,394
Board of Education Services:
Salaries 5,500
Employee Benefits 737
Negactiation and Legal Services 1,703
Auditng and Accounting Services 11,298
Election Expense 5,432
Travel 7,327
Publication Expense 7,005
General Supplies 13,633
52,635
Business Administration Services:
Salaries 20,210
Empleyee Benefits 10,008
Equipment Rental 23,882
Paper 3,760
Equipment Replacement 678
General Supplies 2,665
3 61,202
Continued
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOQL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 1 {Continued)

Student Support Services (continued):

Executive Administration Services:
Salaries- Superintendent and Admin. Assistants
Salaries- Secretarial
Employee Benefits
Travel
General Supplies
Professional Bocks and Dues
Equipment-Additionai

Building Administration Services:
Salaries-Directors
Salaries-Principais
Salaries-Secretarial
Employee Benefits
Travel
General Supplies

Total Student Support Services

Other Expenditures:
AEA Flow-Through

Total Expenditures

(Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Scurces:
Operating Transfers From Cther Fund

{Deficiency) of Revenues and other Sources Over Expenditures

Balance Beginning of Year

Balance End of Year
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185,042
87,952
¢8,326

1,454
13,188
4,480
780

391,732

57,500
410,381
155,018
232,524

3,653
883

859,560

3,798,481

657,856

14,105,458

(211.273)

82,588

(128,685}

2,831,725

2,303,040




LEMARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
June 30, 2004
Schedule 2

Special Revenue Funds

Activity LCSD
Furd Foundation Total
Assels
Cash and Pocled Investments % 169,803 3 64,671 § 234,574
investment (Restricted) 37,030 37,030
Total Assets 169,903 101,701 271,604
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:
Total Liabilities - - -
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Scholarships 101,701 101,701
Unreserved for:
Special Revenue Fund 169,903 169,203
Total Fund Balances 169,903 101,701 271,804
Total Liabilities and Equity % 169,903 3 101,701 & 271,604
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LEMARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 3

Special Revenue Funds

Activity LCSD
Fund Foundation Total
Revenue:
Local Sources $ 638,776 S 47,329 $ 686,105
Total Revenuea 638,776 47,329 €86,105
Expenditures;:
Instruction:
Other Student Support 488,992 33,546 522,538
Total Expenditures 488,592 33,546 522,538
Excess (Beficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 149,784 13,783 163,567
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers Out (163,406) {163,408)
Total Other Financing Sources {(Uses) (163,406) - (163,406}
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Cther Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (13,622) 13,783 181
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 183,525 87,518 271,443
Fund Balances - End of Year $ 169,903 3 101,701 5 271,604
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Individual Student Activity Account Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 4
Balance Balance
June 30, Operating June 30,
2003 Revenues Expenditures Transfers 2004
Senior High
Bark 5 20,988 3% 13,859 § 19,692 S 15,155
F.F.A. 7.134 23,064 19,493 10,705
Miscellaneous Music (7,485) 9,280 3,096 (1,301)
F.CA. 32 730 432 330
Cebate (243) 8,013 7,612 158
Library 1,227 1,712 1,651 1,288
Vocal Music 4,012 13,753 10,764 7,001
Instrumental Music (741) 6,326 5,780 (195)
Music Orchestra 4,135 6,247 6,204 4178
National Honor Society - 644 g644 -
Dance Team 1,489 4,713 1,768 4,434
Student Council 12,933 61,219 61,117 13,035
Thespians 1,943 1,166 3,095 14
German Club 2,386 - - 2,386
Spanish Club 6,106 2,756 2,994 5,868
Dramatics 183 2,444 1,321 1,306
Trades and Industries 13,666 13,767 11,928 15,505
Miscellanecus Athletics 20,817 134,645 144,290 11,172
Clearing 768 69,672 42705 § (25438) 2,297
Cheerleaders 1,706 5,655 7,343 18
Senior Class 1,621 4,705 4,792 1,534
Junior Class - 8,568 8,568 -
Sophomore Class - 27 27 -
Freshman Class o= 39 39 -
Miscellaneous 19,601 (15,324) (804) 5,081
Technolegy Club (203) 879 525 151
Home Economics Club 752 - - 752
Math Club 749 1,025 764 1,010
Biology 8 2,048 1,914 142
Make-A-Wish Club 343 9,296 8,637 1,002

$ 113927 § 390928 $ 376391 § (25438) S 103,026

(Continued)
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Individual Student Activity Account Activity - (Continued)
tor the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 4 (Continued)

Balance Balance
June 30, Operating June 30,
2003 Revenues Expenditures Transfers 2004

Middle School
Book Rent - $ 13,455 § (13,455) -
Miscellaneous % 6,313 3048 § 665 3 2,696
Student Council 13,642 10,784 10,743 13,693
Insurance - g0 g0 -
Library 249 6,675 8,216 7038
Clearing 631 8,153 8,250 524
" High Scheol Principal - 3,851 3,891 -
Band 5,623 10,498 9,943 6,178
Industrial Arts - 3,416 - (3,4186) -
Instrument Rental 6,784 {1,980) 322 4,482
Other 3,355 5,831 7,074 3,112
Bus - 2,012 - (2,012) -
Art 3,087 1,508 1,373 3,222
39,684 68,391 48,567 (18,883) 40,825
Merrill Elementary School 1.031 33,112 B,715 (27,147} 281
Central Elementary School 28,883 146,345 57,319 (91,938) 25,971
Total for Activity Funds $ 183525 $ 638,776 § 488,992 5(163,408) 3 169,903
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Comparison of Taxes and Intergovernmental Revenues and Receipts
For the Years Ended June 30, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001

Schedule 5

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

2004 2003 2002 2001
Local Sources:
Property Taxes § 5859355 F 5584536 § 4892144 3 4,667,842
Mobhile Home Taxes 18,680 20,158 19,307 19,245
5,878,035 5,604,694 4911 451 4 687,087
State Sources:
State Foundation Aid 7,244,306 7,112,992 6,544,580 6,484,331
School Improvement and Technology - 9,330 65,452 153,404
Teachers Compensation Allocation 161,637 137,430 131,446 -
State Lunch Reimbursement 10,877 10,811 9,326 9,411
Educational Exceilence Program:
Phase | 22,883 23,094 23,054 23,054
Phase |l 182,275 184,118 181,998 179,532
Phase ll - 45,955 103,984 99,929
Non-Public Transporation Aid 76,719 82,917 93,442 113,052
Vocational Education Aid 12,939 14,357 13,439 16,606
lowa Early Intervention Block Grant 124,338 122,376 124,252 73.472
AEA Flow-Through 657,856 688,078 675,547 678,360
Other State Aid 47,962 43,833 34,224 51,350
8,542 092 8,475,291 8,000,744 7,882,501
Federal Sources:
Title | 177,042 177,374 151,229 146,102
Class Size Reduction - - 42,031 31,621
Safe and Drug Free Schools and
" Communities 9,959 11,937 9,276 9,608
Innovative Education Program Strategies
{Title VI Program) 13,513 13,548 13,950 13,022
Speciatl Education - Grants to States 95,675 63,0313 32,036 -
Naticnal School Lunch Fund 190,225 182,703 148,203 139,071
Cther Federal Aid 109,369 108,713 23,568 22772
595,783 557,289 420,293 362,196
Total $15,015,910 $14,637,274 $ 13,332483 § 12,931,734
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRIGT
Schedule of Expenditures of Federat Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule §
CFDA Grant '
Grantor/Program Number Number Expenditures
Indirect:
U.S. Departiment of Agriculture:
iowa Department of Education:
Faod Distribution (non-cash) 10.550 FY04 S 32,504
Scheol Nutrition Cluster Programs:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 FY04 28,630
National School Lunch Program 10.555 FYD4 164,315
192,945
U.S. Department of Education:
lowa Department of Education:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 FYQ4 176,992
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 FY04 95,675
Perkins -Basic Grants to States 84.048 FY04 24776
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities -
State Grants 84.186 FYo4 5,959
Innovative Education Program Strategies
(Title VI Program) 84.298 FYQo4 13,513
Title Il improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 FYQ4 71,135
Title VIA- Grants far State Assessments &
Related Activities 84.369 Fy04 13,458
Total 5 630,957

* Total expenditures from these programs exceed 50% of the total Federal Awards and are considered
majar programs

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the Le Mars
Community School District and is presented in conformity with the accrual or madified accrual basis
of accounting. The information an this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nan-Profit Organizations. Therefore,
some amounts presented in this schedute may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparatian of, the general purpese financial statements.

sSee Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Schedule 7

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results

(a) An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

(&) A reportable condition in internal controf over financial reporting was disclosed by the audit of the
financial statements, including a material weakness.

{c) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance, which is material to the financial statements.

{d) A reportable condition in interna!l contrel over major pregrams was disclosed by the audit of the
financial statements, including a material weakness.

{e) An ungualified opinion was issued on cempliance with requirements applicable to each major
program. '

{f) The audit disclosed an audit finding, which was required to be reported in accordance with Office

of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a).
{q) Major programs were as follows:
» CFDA Number 84.010 — Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies
» Clustered Programs:;
» CFDA Number 10.553 — Schocl Breakfast Program
« CFDA Number 10.555 — Naticnal School Lunch Program
{h) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was 5300,000.

(i) Le Mars Community Scheol District did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Caosts
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Scheduie 7 (Continued)

Part ll; Findings Related {o the General Purpose Financial Statements:

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE:
No matters were reported.

There were no prior year audit findings.

REPORTABLE CONDITIONS:

I1-A-04 Financial Accounting ~ Segregation of Duties

A, Chservation — The Schooi District accountant is involved In almost all phases of the
finance operations, inciuding check preparation, preparation of journal entries, as well as
financial reporting and statements. We did note that the accountant is not involved with
the receipt of any cash or checks and that invoices/claims are not paid untii reviewed by
the assistant superintendent. We aiso noted that the financial reporting is under the
direction of the assistant superintendent.

Recommendation — With a limited number of personnel, segregation of duties is difficult.
The School District has implemented management review procedures which we fesl aid
in improving the intermal controls of the School District. However, we comment that this
weakness exists and the duties of the accountant should be continually monitored by
managemaent.

Respanse — The District feels that additional personnel would not bhe cost effective,

However, management will continue to menitor transactions on a regular basis,

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Schedule 7 {Continued)

Part 11l:

Findings and Questioned Costs For Federal Awards:

-A-04

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE:

No matters were reported.

See Part V: Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
REPCRTABLE CONDITIONS:

Financial Accounting — Segregation of Duties

Observation — The School District accourntant is involved in almost all phases of the
finance operations, including check preparation, preparation of journal entries, as well as
financial reporting and statements. We did note that the accountant is not involved with
the receipt of any cash or checks and that inveices/claims are not paid until reviewed by
the assistant superintendent. We also noted that the financial reporting is under the
direction of the assistant superintendent.

Recommendation — With a limited number of personnel, segregation of duties is difficult.
The Schoeol District has implemented management review procedures which we feel aid
in improving the internal controls of the School District. However, we comment that this
weakness exists and the duties of the accountant should be continually monitorec by
management.

Response — The District feels that additional persornel would not be cost effective.
However, management will continue to monitor transactions on a reqular hasis,

Cenclusion — Respense accepted.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOQL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Schedule 7 {Continued)

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

V-A-04

V-B-04

V-C-04

IV-D-04

V-E-04

IV-F-04

WV-G-04

IV-H-04

V-1-04

V-J-04

IV-K-04

Official _Depositories — A resolution naming official depositories ‘has been
approved by the District. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution
were not exceeded during the year ended June 30, 2004,

Certified Budget — Disbursements for the year ended June 30, 2004 did nol
exceed amounts budgeted.

Guestionable Disbursemenis — No disbursements were noted that they may naot
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attormey General's
opinion dated April 25, 1979.

Travel Expense - No expenditures of District money for fravel expenses of
spouses of District officials or employees were noted. No travel advances to
District officials or empioyees were noted.

Business Transactions — There were no business transactions between the
District and District officials or employees during the year ended June 30, 2004,

Bend Coverage — Surety bond coverage of District officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be
reviewed annualiy to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes — No fransactions requiring Beard approval which had not been
approved by the Board were noted.

Certified Epnrollment — No variances in the basic enrollment data certified to the
Department of Education were noted.

Deposits and Investments — N¢ instances of non-compliance with the deposit
and investment provisions of Chapter 12B and Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa
and the District’s investment policy were noted.

Certified Annuai Report — The Certified Annual Report was filed with the
Department of Education timely and we noted no significant deficiencies in the
amounts reported.

Deficit Balances — The management fund as well as several student activity
accounts had deficit balances at June 30, 2004,

Recommendation — The District should continue to investigate alternatives lo
eliminaie these deficits in order to return these accounts to a sound financial
condition.

Response - The District is continuing to investigate alternatives to eliminate
deficits in the management fund and the student activity accounts at the end of
the fiscal year.

Conclusion —~ Response accepted.
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LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Schedule 7 (Continued)

Part V: Findings — Year Ended June 30, 2003

Department of Agriculture

[11-1-03:

[1-A-03:

National School Free/Reduced Lunch Program

Condition: This finding was an instance of non-compliance stating there were
grrors in calculating eligibility for the free-reduced lunch status, resulting in non-
compliance of $2,014.

Recommendation: The auditor recommended that all employees involved in
computing eligibility shouid be properly trained and a review of the completed
applications be conducted prior to students being awarded free/reduced status.
Management concurred with the recommendation and indicated that the
procedures would be implemented.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted immediately for the 2003-
2004 school year. No similar findings were noted in the 2004 audit.

Financial Accounting — Segregation of Duties

Condition: The School District accountant is involved in almost all phases of the
finance operations, including check preparation, preparation of journal entries, as
well as financial reporting and statements. We did note that the accountant is not
involved with the receipt of any cash or checks and that invoices/claims are not
paid until reviewed by the assistant superintendent. We also noted that the
financial reporting is under the direction of the assistant superintendent.

Recommendation: With a limited number of personnel, segregation of duties is
difficult. The School District has implemented management review procedures
which we feel aid in improving the internal controls of the School District.
However, we comment that this weakness exists and the duties of the
accountant should be continually monitored by management.

Current Status: This finding still exists at June 30, 2004 (See Comment ||-A-04).
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WILLIAMS
&
COMPANY, pc Cartified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Education of the
Le Mars Community School District

We have audited the financiai statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the LE MARS CCMMUNITY SCHCOL
DISTRICT as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the i.e Mars Community
Schoeol District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 20, 2004. We
conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the Code of
lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance:
As part of abtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Le Mars Cornmunity School District's financial

statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain pravisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-compliance
that are described in Part IV of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Comments invoiving statutory and other legal matters about the District's operations for the year ended June
30, 2004 are based exclusively cn knowiedge obtained from procedures perfermed during cur audit of the
financial statements of the District. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments invoiving statutory and
other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. Prior year statutory
comiments have all been resoived.

Internal Controf Qver Financial Reporting:

fn planning and performing our audit, we considered Le Mars Community Schogl District's internal contrel over
financial reporting in order o determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control cver financial reporting. However,
we noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to cur attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reparting that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect Le Mars Community Scheool District's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial cata consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The
reportable condition is described in Part I of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosls
as item II-A-Q4.

A materia! weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or
fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
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the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reponiable conditions that are also censidered to be material weaknasses. However, we believe 11-3-04 is 2

material weakness.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the board of education,
management, employees and citizens of Le Mars Communlty School District and other parties to wham the Le
Mars Community School District may report. This repert is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by perscnnel of L.e Mars
Community Schoel District during the course of our audit. If you have any questions concerning any of the
above matters, we would be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

W;{Z;F d f C.

Certified Public Accountafits

l.e Mars, lowa
August 20, 2004
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WIL. LIAMS
& N
COMPAN Y, P C - Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS'
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Education of the
Le Mars Community School District:

Compliance:
We have audited the compliance of LE MARS COMMUNITY SCHQOL DISTRICT with the types of

campliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget {OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2004. Le Mars Community School District's major federal programs are identified in Part | of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Le
Mars Community School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Le Mars
Community School District's compliance based on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards,
Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circudar A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Le Mars Community
School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our epinion. Qur
audit does not provide a legal determination on Le Mars Community School District's compliance with those

regquirements.

In our epinion, Le Mars Community School District compiied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004,

Internal Contral Over Compliance:

The management of the Le Mars Community School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing cur audit, we considered Le Mars Community
Schoei District's internal conirol over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpese of expressing our
opinion on comgpliance and to test and report an internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

We noted a2 certain matier involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to
be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant
deficlencies in the design or operaticn of the internal control over compliance that, in our judgment, could
adversely affect the Le Mars Community School District's ability to administer 2 majer federal pregram in
accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The reportable condition
is described in Part |1l of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operaticn of cne or mare of the internal controi
components does not reduce te a relatively low level the risk that nonzompliance with applicable requirements
of laws, regulations, contracis and grant agreements caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation
to 2 major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely pericd by employees
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Qur consideration of the internal contral over
comgliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal contro! that might be reportable conditions
and, accerdingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. However, we consider item [11-A-04 tc be a material weakness.

This report, a public recerd by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the board of education,
management, employees and citizens of Le Mars Community School District and other parties to whom Le

Mars Community School District may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities.
This report is intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

"

1/ il cin,, + FcC.
Certified Public Accoun#ant

Le Mars, lowa
August 20, 2004
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LeMars Community Schools =i

Kent Schwissow

97| Third Avenue South¥vest, LeMars, lowa 51031-2299 Assiscant Superincendent
Phone: (712) 546-4155 Fax: (712) 546-457

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costis
Corrective Action Plan
June 30, 2004

Department of Education:

Le Mars Community School District, respectfully suomits the following corrective action pian for the year
ended June 30, 2004,

The audit was performed by Williams & Company, P.C., P.Q. Box 1010, Le Mars, lowa, for the fiscal vear
ended June 30, 2004.

The finding from the June 30, 2004 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs is discussed below. The
finding is numbered consistently with the number assigned in the schedule. Part | of the scheduie,
Summary of the Independent Auditor's Resuits, does include a finding and is not addressed.

The audit disclosed a reportable condition as identified in Part lll of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

REPORTABLE CONDITIONS:

ill-A-04 - Financial Accounting — Segregation of Duties — National School Lunch Program CFDA #10.553
and 10.555 — Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies CFDA #84.010

Recommendation — With a limited number of personnel, segregation of duties is difficult. The School
District has implemented management review procedures which we feel aid in improving the internal
controls of the School District. However, we comment that this weakness exists and the duties of the
accountant should be continually monitored by management.

Response — The District feels that additional personnel would not be cost effective. However,
management will continue to monitor transactions on a regular basis.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
If the Department of Education has guestions regarding this plan, please call Todd Wendt at 712-546-4155,

Sincerely yours,

LE MA COMMUNITY SCHOCL DISTRICT
(ot ol

Dr. Todd Wendt, Superintendent

The Mission Of the LeMars Community Schod®is o guide every student in achieving the highest
quality education by teaching the basic skills, developing character, and promoting life-long learning, all
through an aggressive partnership with the students, families, scheol, and community.





